JOINT EDUCATION, YOUTH & CULTURE and SOCIAL & HEALTH CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 27 JUNE 2024

Minutes of the hybrid meeting of the Joint Education, Youth & Culture and Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Committees of Flintshire County Council held on Thursday 27 June 2024.

PRESENT:

- Councillors: Mel Buckley, Teresa Carberry, Tina Claydon, Bill Crease, Fran Lister, Dave Mackie, Gina Maddison, Roz Mansell, Ryan McKeown, Debbie Owen, Andrew Parkhurst, Carolyn Preece, Jason Shallcross and Arnold Woolley.
- CO-OPTEES: Lisa Allen
- APOLOGIES: Councillors Hilary McGuill, Gladys Healey, Sam Swash, Mrs Lyn Bartlett, Chief Officer (Social Services) Senior Manager (Integrated Services and Lead Adults) Senior Manager (School Improvement)

ALSO PRESENT AS Councillor Ron Davies OBSERVERS:

- **CONTRIBUTORS:** Councillor Mared Eastwood (Cabinet Member for Education, Welsh Language, Culture and Leisure); Leader of the Council, Cabinet Member for Social Services and Wellbeing; Chief Officer (Education and Youth), Senior Manager (Children and Workforce), Senior Manager, Safeguarding and Commissioning) Senior Manager (Inclusion and Progression), Learning Advisor (Health, Wellbeing & Safeguarding)
- **IN ATTENDANCE:** Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator and Democratic Services Officer

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR (Link to Recording)

The Facilitator requested nominations for the Chair for the meeting. Councillor Teresa Carberry was nominated and seconded for the Chair.

RESOLVED:

That the appointment of Councillor Teresa Carberry as Chair of the Committee be noted.

2. <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING DECLARATIONS)</u> (Link to Recording)

Councillor Fran Lister declared a personal interest (for agenda item 6)

3. <u>SAFEGUARDING IN EDUCATION INCLUDING INTERNET SAFETY AND</u> <u>SOCIAL MEDIA</u> (Link to Recording)

The Learning Advisor (Health, Wellbeing & Safeguarding) introduced the report which provided Members with an update of the Authority's statutory safeguarding duties both in schools and within the Education and Youth portfolio. Specific points within the report were highlighted to Members.

In response to questions from Members, the Learning Advisor – Health, Wellbeing & Safeguarding agreed to provide the following :-

- To provide information on the outstanding places on courses for Professional Development.
- To provide information on the range of roles included in the new groupings at point 1.06 of the report.
- In regard to Relationships and Sexuality Education she agreed to provide a report, which would include the outcomes of the objectives, which ensured that schools were being supported to meet the requirements of the statutory RSE Code.
- In response to points on the number of schools accessing the 360° Safe Cymru Tool, it was agreed to provide this localised information. Schools would then be reminded that this resource was available, that it was free of charge and if this was not being used how were they ensuring that their online safety provision, policies and procedures were up to date. This was also something that Welsh Government were highlighting.

The resolution within the report was supported.

RESOLVED:

That the committee note the content of the Safeguarding in Education report and provide their feedback to officers on the strategies used by the Portfolio to effectively discharge its duties.

4. <u>CARE CLOSER TO HOME: PLACEMENT COMMISSIONING STRATEGY</u> FOR LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN (Link to Recording)

In presenting the <u>report</u> the Senior Manager (Children's Services) commented that the draft had identified the current and projected population of looked after children. It provided an assessment of the support which was required and identified the Authority's ambition to further develop in-house fostering and in-house residential children's homes in Flintshire. Welsh Government (WG) were committed to eliminate private profit from the care of looked after children and the Authority had been clear in discussions with WG that there had to be a timeline with a funded programme which would ensure that it would be possible to deliver this under the requirements set out in legislation. The next phase was to work with Members to set out our ambition, establish what we want to provide as an Authority and to work with WG to ensure the revenue and resources were provided to support this.

In response to a question on agency foster carers, the Senior Manager agreed to take this back as an action and circulate the information to Members.

The recommendations within the report were supported.

RESOLVED:

- (a) That the committee support the progress made in delivering phase one of our 'Care Closer to Home' strategy.
- (b) That a workshop for Elected Members was arranged in the Autumn 2024 to outline the new legislation, the context of current placement commissioning (often referred to as Out of County Placements) and to explore options for developing our strategic approach for placement commissioning and further development of in-house placement provision.

5. <u>ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS AND EDUCATION TRIBUNAL (WALES)</u> <u>ACT 2018 (Link to Recording)</u>

Introducing the <u>Report</u>, the Senior Manager (Inclusion and Progression) explained that it summarised the implementation of the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018 (ALNET) and the support provided to children with Autism. Specific points with the report were highlighted for Members.

The Senior Manager (Children's Services) referred to the work supporting health colleagues around the volumes of children and young people who were waiting for an ND (neuro development) assessment. At a recent meeting of the Social & Health Care Overview and Scrutiny committee the question on waiting times was put to Senior Members of the Health Board. A written response was provided and the Senior Manager agreed to share this with the committee.

The Chair suggested that another recommendation be included "that the Learning Advisor for Autism be invited to attend the committee at some time in the future". This was supported by the Committee.

The recommendations within the report were supported.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the committee recognise the revised duties placed on the Council by ALNET and the actions undertaken to implement the new system.

- (b) That the committee note the potential financial pressures due to the legislative requirements.
- (c) That the Learning Advisor for Autism be invited to attend the committee at some time in the future

6. <u>PERIOD DIGNITY UPDATE (Link to Recording)</u>

The Learning Advisor (Health, Wellbeing and Safeguarding) introduced the <u>report</u> which outlined the current national position regarding period dignity and how grant funding had benefited Flintshire schools and communities over the two financial periods for 2022-2023 and 2023-2024, with Welsh Government (WG) providing its "Period Proud Wales Action Plan" in February 2023.

The recommendation within the report was supported.

RESOLVED:

That the committee received the report on period dignity and was assured that the grant funding has been appropriately spent and had helped to meet the needs of those targeted by this Welsh Government initiative.

11. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

None.

(The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 4.30 pm)

.....

Chair

Meetings of the Joint Education, Youth & Culture & Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Committees are webcast and can be viewed by visiting the webcast library at http://flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home